Cabinet agenda
Date:

Thursday 18 March 2021 (Extraordinary meeting)

Time:

12.30 pm

Venue:

Via MS Teams

Membership:
M Tett (Leader), A Macpherson (Cabinet Member Adult Social Care) (Deputy Leader),
K Wood (Cabinet Member Resources) (Deputy Leader), S Bowles (Cabinet Member Town
Centre Regeneration), B Chapple OBE (Cabinet Member Environment and Climate Change),
J Chilver (Cabinet Member Property & Assets), A Cranmer (Cabinet Member Education and
Skills), I Darby (Cabinet Member Housing & Homelessness), T Green (Cabinet Member Youth
Provision), C Harriss (Cabinet Member Sports and Leisure), P Hogan (Cabinet Member
Culture), D Martin (Cabinet Member Logistics), N Naylor (Cabinet Member Transport),
M Shaw (Cabinet Member Children’s Services), W Whyte (Cabinet Member Planning and
Enforcement), G Williams (Cabinet Member Communities & Public Health) and F Wilson
(Cabinet Member Regulatory Services)

Webcasting notice
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.
You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.
Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Item

Page No

1

Apologies

2

Minutes
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 nd
March 2021.

3

Declarations of interest

4

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report

17 - 40

5

Covid-19 Update Report

41 - 88

6

Date of next meeting
30 March 2021 at 10am

3 - 16

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.
For further information please contact: Craig Saunders on 01296 585043, email
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Item 2

Cabinet minutes
Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Tuesday 2 March 2021 in Via MS Teams
Video Conference, available to the public at https://buckinghamshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home, commencing at 10.00 am and concluding at 12.11 pm.

Members present
M Tett, A Macpherson, K Wood, S Bowles, B Chapple OBE, J Chilver, A Cranmer, I Darby,
T Green, C Harriss, P Hogan, D Martin, N Naylor, M Shaw, W Whyte, G Williams and
F Wilson

Agenda Item
1

Apologies
There were no apologies.

2

Minutes
RESOLVED –
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2021 be approved as a
correct record.

3

Declarations of interest
There were none.

4

Hot Topics
Warren Whyte, Cabinet Member for Planning and Enforcement, informed the
meeting that a number of planning consultations were currently taking place:
Biodiversity Accounting System (Supplementary Planning Document) –
deadline to respond was 19 March.
Planning Statement of Community Involvement – deadline to respond was 22
March.
Call for Brownfield sites – deadline to respond was 22 March.
The Inaugural Buckinghamshire Design Awards had been held over the last few
months. The people’s vote had concluded last week with the Great Kimble Church
of England School winning the public sector award, and a private house in
Hambledon winning the private development award.

Page 3

5

Question Time
There were none.

6

Forward Plan (28 Day Notice)
The Leader introduced the Forward Plan and commended it to all Members of the
Council and the public, as a document that gave forewarning of exactly what Cabinet
would be discussing at forthcoming meetings.
RESOLVED –
That the Cabinet Forward Plan be noted.

7

Select Committee Inquiry to assess the effectiveness of community organisation
grants during the Covid-19 pandemic
P Irwin, Chairman, of the Communities and Localism Select Committee and P
Cooper, a member of the Inquiry Working Group, attended the meeting to present
the findings of a Select Committee Inquiry undertaken to assess the effectiveness of
community organization grants during the Covid-19 pandemic.
During the period 8 December 2020 to 18 January 2021 the Inquiry Group had held a
number of meetings and evidence gathering sessions with key stakeholders with a
view to making recommendations for Cabinet’s consideration.
Whilst the Inquiry Group recognised that many of these recommendations would
require working in partnership with other organisations, they anticipated that the
Council would like to lead some areas . One of the main themes running through the
Inquiry report was how valuable the voluntary sector are. There were concerns, as
recognised by the National Council for Voluntary Organisations, that the voluntary
sector might shrink in the immediate future with a reduction in fundraising leading
to organisations calling on their reserves. Therefore, the promotion and protection
of the voluntary sector should remain a key priority for the Council, the Strategic
Funding Group, Community Impact Bucks and other partners.
The Inquiry Group hoped that the report would enable the Council to build upon its
strong links with the voluntary sector and to play an even greater role in facilitating
change through stronger partnership working leading to resilient and protected local
communities across Buckinghamshire.
The Inquiry Group had been inspired by the voluntary work being undertaken
throughout Buckinghamshire and placed on record its thanks to everyone who had
helped through the pandemic which had strengthened and renewed the belief in the
power of local communities. It was important that the Council was creative about
embracing recent volunteers and volunteering needed to be made attractive and
accessible to everyone.
Whilst recognising that the funding process had to be set-up quickly, the Inquiry
Group wanted to highlight lessons learnt through its recommendations on the

Page 4

management of community grants for any future pandemic ensuring that:
there were no gaps or duplication of services.
resources were being used effectively and efficiently providing value for
money for all residents through good partnership working.
benefits were provided which may have a long term impact on communities.
Therefore, the Inquiry Group had made recommendations about continuing to raise
awareness of the work of the voluntary sector, continuing the effective collaboration
with strategic partners, building on the legacy of volunteering, continued support for
funding including looking at how Council and community assets could be used
further and the need to provide value for money by using a structural enabler to
ensure that resources are being used effectively. The role of Community Boards was
key in this process and could act as a structural enabler in terms of co-ordinating
funding at a local level to ensure that grants are only given where clear local need is
demonstrated.
The Inquiry Group’s key findings and recommendations were set out in the report
attached at Appendix 1. The Leader also thanked the committee for the work and
subsequent recommendations and thanked all supporting officers.
G Williams, Cabinet Member for Communities and Pubic Health, presented a draft
response on behalf of Cabinet (attached as an appendix to the Minutes of this
meeting) on the Select Committee Inquiry report and its recommendations and
concurred with the Inquiry Group on the importance of the community
organisations and supporting volunteers. Cabinet Members commented on the
responses or raised the following points during discussion:

Councillor Irwin confirmed that the Chairman of the Council had already
been contacted regarding a one-minute clap being held at the beginning of
the April 2021 full Council meeting to say thank you to all those who had
helped during the pandemic.

It was recognised that many of the volunteers during the pandemic had been
on furlough. While some of these people may not continue as volunteers
when life returned to normal, there were also many people new to
volunteering that would continue to do so into the future.

That there were many examples of where a small funding grant provided by
the Council had made a huge difference to small local community
organisations, e.g. Winslow Big Society.

That the level of diversity and different sections of the community who didn’t
usually work together, working together, had been remarkable.

That, like any reserve force, a challenge for the future would be to ensure
that organisations, including the Council, kept in contact with volunteers,
kept them motivated and provided some training, and showed people that
their contributions were meaningful and valued. It was agreed that
Community Boards would have a role to play in this.
RESOLVED
(1)
That the Select Committee Inquiry Group, as well as supporting officers, be

Page 5

(2)

8

thanked for their work and subsequent recommendations.
That Cabinet’s responses to the Inquiry Group’s report and
recommendations, as detailed in the appendix to the Minutes, be noted.

Buckinghamshire Council Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector
Strategic Framework
G Williams, Cabinet Member for Communities and Public Health, introduced the
report and informed Members that the launch of the new Buckinghamshire Council
on 1 April 2020 had coincided with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. The local
response highlighted the strong partner relationships that existed in the county with
the Voluntary Community Social Enterprise sector. The response had shown how
swiftly the Council could collaborate, adapt services, and embrace new ways of
working under immense pressure. It also demonstrated the need to think
differently, creatively, and be innovative in the ways that sectors work together.
New, stronger alliances had been formed with a focus on protecting vulnerable
residents, and a common goal to work together for Buckinghamshire. It was vital
that the Council continued to collaborate effectively at every level to build stronger,
safer and more resilient communities and improve health and wellbeing.
The framework sought to demonstrate the value Buckinghamshire Council had for
the sector and the importance of strategic collaborative working. It aims to provide a
high level guide for partnership working with the VCSEs and act as a springboard for
discussions around the needs of our communities.
There was a need to be responsive, flexible, and adaptive to changing needs - this
would not be a static document. It would be underpinned by an action plan, coproduced with sectors and partners, and will continually evolve. The VCSE Recovery
Board would be the key vehicle to drive the development of the action plan.
Members sought additional information and were informed:

That the majority of the VCSE Board representation was from larger charities,
although there were also 1-2 Trustees involved and a representative from
the BAME community.

That the Council was confident that the sector had a wide and inclusive reach
across the whole community.

That one of the hidden benefits of Covid had been to put pride back into
community areas, which was helping to remake communities that had been
considered fragmented a few years ago. The future work of the Community
Boards would be key to ensuring this work and benefits continued to be
realised.
RESOLVED –
That the Buckinghamshire Council Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
Sector Strategic Framework be agreed.

Page 6

9

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and Inclusion Strategy 2021 – 23
including the SEND Improvement Plan
A Cranmer, Cabinet Member for Education and Skills, introduced the report and
informed Members that the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
Strategy expired in December 2020. Work had been going over the last 12 months
to review progress against the Strategy and develop a new Strategy for the coming 3
years. The report provided a summary of the work and set out the key elements of
the new Strategy, and the associated SEND Improvement Plan.
The Strategy was a key document for the anticipated Ofsted/Care Quality
Commission Local Area SEND inspection that was expected to happen in 2021. The
Strategy was a partnership document that had been co-produced. It was “owned”
and would be delivered by the local authority and key partners across the local area,
including schools, health services and the voluntary and community sector.
The new Strategy aimed to capture the high aspirations Buckinghamshire had for all
its children, recognising the additional support those with SEND might need to be
able to achieve their goals. As such, it adopted the same vision that the Children
and Young People’s Partnership had set out for all children.
A public consultation had been undertaken between 2 March and 6 April 2020 to
seek the views of stakeholders on the vision, principles and aims of the Strategy.
These were developed following engagement activities that started with young
people at the “Shout Out for SEND” Conference in November 2019 and via the SEND
Youth Forum. Copies of the Conference Report and it’s detailed findings could be
provided on request.
The views of parents/carers, schools and other professionals were critical to the
development of the Strategy and a number of events had taken place to secure
meaningful input. These included:
2 sessions with parents/carers facilitated alongside FACT Bucks, the Parent
Carer Forum.
Attendance at School Collaboration meetings for engagement with school
professionals.
Meetings with professionals working in a range of other services supporting
children and young people with SEND including those in the local authority,
health and the voluntary and community sector.
Following these events a multi-agency group had developed the draft Strategy,
having evaluated and RAG rated progress against the improvement priorities
identified in the 2017–2020 Strategy. A number of strategies from other Local
Authorities were also reviewed, as well as guidance from the DfE on what a SEND
Strategy should include. FACT Bucks and Bucks SENDIAS Service were integral to this
process, representing the voice of parents and carers.
Coproduction had been a key element of the development of the new Strategy, in
particular with FACT Bucks. The Vision, Principles, Aims and Objectives of the

Page 7

Strategy had been signed off at the SEND Integrated Services Board on 16 July 2020.
This Board was chaired by the Corporate Director of Children’s Services and
provided governance for the SEND Improvement work. It included representatives
from across the Local Authority, the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Voluntary
and Community Sector.
The aims and objectives of the strategy were centred on the 4 Preparation for
Adulthood outcomes defined in the SEND Code of Practice, Jan 2015, that were
detailed in the report. Focusing on these 4 areas had enabled all aspects of support
and provision for children and young people with SEND to be considered, with the
collective goal of creating opportunities and improving outcomes.
The SEND Improvement Plan had been refreshed to ensure the aspirations of the
Strategy were achieved. This had led to a more streamlined approach with a range
of work streams based around the key priorities, and rigorous monitoring of
progress. The work streams, known as Impact Groups, were multi-agency groups
that were tasked with contributing to identified objectives within the Strategy, with
collaboration and co-production as a core principle. The work of these groups was
captured in the Local Area SEND Improvement Plan. This had been reviewed by the
SEND Integrated Services Board on 19 October 2020 and the approach approved.
The SEND and Inclusion Strategy 2021-23, and the SEND Improvement Plan were
attached as Appendix 1 and 2 respectively to the Cabinet report.
Members sought additional information and were informed:

That the Strategy and Improvement Plan both had a very strong focus on
inclusion.






On the wide range of organisations, sectors and people that had been
involved over the last year to develop the Strategy and the associated SEND
Action Plan.
That the most immediate priorities included responding to the growing
needs of Autism Spectrum condition (which was on the rise nationally and
locally), social / emotional / mental health issues, delivering educational
placements, as well as preparations for adulthood and working with the
community sector.
That the Improvement Plan matched to all of the Strategy’s priorities.
Monthly Improvement Board meetings were held, chaired by the Director of
Children’s Services, which set up scrutiny / challenge to processes so that any
identified barriers to delivering the Strategy could be addressed.

RESOLVED –
That the updated Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and Inclusion
Strategy 2021 – 23 (Appendix 1), and the associated SEND Improvement Plan
(Appendix 2) be approved.

Page 8

10

Future Highways Services Contract
N Naylor, Cabinet Member for Transport Services, introduced the report and
informed Members that the current highways services contract had been awarded
to Ringway Jacobs in 2009. It was an 8-year contract with a possible extension of 7
years, 6 of which had already been granted. A decision has been taken not to grant
the final 1-year extension and the current contract would expire on 31 March 2023.
The Cabinet report and supporting appendices looked at what actions needed to be
undertaken to ensure the future delivery of this key service, as the current model of
delivery was not viewed as being the most appropriate to achieve the outcomes of
the service and to contribute towards some of the key strategic objectives of the
council. There were a number of key current limitations that were detailed in the
report.
Following the financial pressures and difficulties that had been experienced by some
of the major service providers in the sector, including the collapse of Carillion,
having a single provider for all areas of the service was also seen as a concern that
needed addressing. Approximately 30 months was required to undertake a
comprehensive procurement exercise for a contract of this nature, particularly if it
was proposed to alter the model considerably from the current arrangement. To
enable the associated procurement exercise to be carried out, a decision was
required on what operating model would best serve the council going forward.
A comprehensive analysis of the various models that were available in the market
had been carried out and assessed to their appropriateness to deliver the key
objectives of the Council and achieve value for money. The ranking order of these
were contained within Appendix 1. Governance arrangements had been put in place
for the procurement exercise with representation as shown in Appendix 2. The
proposed model was a hybrid of the models that had been assessed and comprised:
a larger in-house client team to better manage and direct the service as per
Appendix 3.
a term maintenance contractor who will be responsible for carrying out all
routine maintenance on the network, comprising winter maintenance, small
scale and localised pothole repairs, gulley cleaning and drainage
maintenance, cyclical grass cutting, maintenance of traffic signals, signs and
lines, bridges, structures, footpaths, and street lighting as well as potentially
some of the capital maintenance projects.
a term consultant, who will support the client but also have responsibility for
transport planning, feasibility and business case development, design and
project management of larger works and major projects.
2 number frameworks to provide competition and resilience:
o the first framework with 3 lots:
 1 for conventional surfacing and reconstruction,
 1 for surfacing treatments e.g. surface dressing, slurry sealing,
high friction surfacing etc.
 1 for other minor work activities, e.g. machine lay plane and
patch, footway reconstruction, drainage schemes, etc.
o and the second framework for larger capital improvements and

Page 9

-

infrastructure works.
and ultimately all members of the above to form an alliance and operate as a
single team.

Further details of the proposed model were contained in the report, with
Appendices 4 and 5 including information in terms of function and description.
The model being proposed would also address the other issues and recognised
concerns of the existing model. The frameworks would promote value for money
through cost analysis via tested and transparent schedule of rates, assessment of
performance and contract mechanisms which incentivise right first time. In
addition, having a range of service providers available to the council for different
areas of the service, as opposed to a single provider, would present opportunities to
compare rates and performance and give more assurance and resilience in delivery
of service.
In addition, the existing client team was one of, if not, the leanest in the country,
and it was proposed to extend the capacity of this team. A proposed outline
structure for the new client team was attached in Appendix 3. This would enable the
client team to, facilitate the reprocurement of the highways services contract,
manage the contractual arrangements going forward and to better influence and
control the policy, levels of service, programmes of work and control of the use and
occupation of the highway network. It would also enable and facilitate improved
working relationships and communications with the elected members, key
stakeholders including Town and Parish councils and the wider community by
transferring back in-house the Local Area Technicians (LATs), the Customer
Compliance Officers (CCOs) and the communications team.
Members sought additional information and were informed:

it was envisaged that the new contract would give Members a greater ability
to be able to discuss decisions and to affect minor design changes in their
local area through working with area technicians.






That the weightings afforded to different contract elements as part of the
procurement / tendering process would be discussed with the Member
Reference Group and brought back to Cabinet for a final decision.
That Highways Services was very aware of the Council’s Climate Change and
Air Quality Strategy and would look to address issues as part of a new
contract. For example, through the use of climate friendly materials and
processes, and through accompanying measures such as a Verge
Management Strategy.
That the term maintenance contractor in the new contract would be
responsible for mending potholes and fixing drains. The contractor would be
based in the county and operate out of local depots.

Page 10

RESOLVED –
1)

2)

3)

11

That the proposed operating and procurement model and associated
timescales in terms of the future delivery of this key service, ranked as
‘Platinum Plus’, be agreed.
That the increase in the capacity of the existing client team to meet the
needs of procuring the new contract and thereafter manage and deliver the
service as proposed be noted.
That the new Governance arrangements and Programme which had been
put in place to administer and deliver this procurement project be noted.

Buckinghamshire Council Response to the Right to Regenerate Consultation
The ‘Right to Contest’ allowed anyone – private citizen or organisation – to challenge
the central government (strand 1) and other public bodies, including Local
Authorities (strand 2) to sell land or property if they believe it’s not needed or could
be put to better economic use. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) was currently consulting on proposals to reform to the Right
to Contest, turning it into ‘The Right to Regenerate’, making the process more
effective. The deadline to respond to the consultation was 13 March 2021.
M Tett, Leader of the Council, introduced the report which highlighted the context
of the consultation and the emerging thoughts of Buckinghamshire Council’s
response.
MHCLG was arguing that the reform of the Right to Contest would help to
“encourage the public to drive regeneration and stimulate the more productive use
of public land”. The reform particularly concerned Strand 2 of the Right to Contest,
which allowed members of the public to request that government direct the disposal
of unused or underused land owned by public bodies. The Right to Contest was little
known and little used, with only one direction being issued since 2014. The
proposed reforms were as follows:
Increasing the usefulness and effectiveness of the right, taking into
consideration how the reform could be used by private individuals and
organisations.
Making it clearer when land is unused or underused through the publication
of a clear definition to help guide people making applications.
Extending the scope of the right, questioning if including land owned by town
and parish councils would increase the effectiveness of the right.
If a public body has an intended use for the land in question, the government
is considering incentivising temporary uses by ordering sales where
temporary uses cannot be identified. This is suggested to help minimise
blight until sites are put to better long-term use and help to keep
neighbourhoods vibrant and productive especially in town centres and urban
areas.
To ensure a greater role for local authorities, anyone making a request under
the right may be required to prove they have contacted their local authority,
as the right to contest was designed to be a last resort.

Page 11

-

-

-

The ‘Presumption in Favour of Disposal’ reform questions if the Secretary of
State should establish clearly that disposals will be ordered unless there is a
compelling reason not to do so.
To improve transparency around these requests, the government is
considering requiring local authorities to: produce quarterly reports on the
number of preliminary enquiries made, display physical and digital publicity
where a request has been submitted for the release of a site, and publish all
requests, together with their outcomes and reasoning online.
If an application is successful, the government is considering offering the
party who made the request first refusal.
The Secretary of State had the power to specify in the direction, the terms
and conditions, though this power had never been exercised. The
government was considering if conditions should be imposed on the disposal
of land.

The premise of the proposed amendment appeared founded upon positive direction
to increase the success of the previously unsuccessful Right to Contest. It was
considered that the proposed changes could have a positive impact on community
involvement in place shaping and improve engagement between public bodies,
including local authorities, and community groups.
However, there remained a significant number of unknowns and a lack of specific
detail regarding the proposed reforms that bring into question its operational
practicality. These were queried in the draft Buckinghamshire Council response
found in the Appendix 3 The key concerns for Buckinghamshire included:
A potential ‘presumption in favour of disposal’ which could result in public
bodies having to release land should they not have a compelling reason not
to do so. For public bodies with a substantial land ownership this may result
in the need for all land either to have plans developed or face the potential
for land to be released. Furthermore, as a newly established unitary council,
Buckinghamshire is at a significant disadvantage in being able to determine
the future uses of its estate. If imposed, we are suggesting a 5-year
moratorium on the right should be granted to any recently established
unitary local authority.
A lack of definition on what unused or underused land is. As a result, it is
unclear what land could potentially be in scope under the proposed right
reform. This concern is further emphasised in the fact that is not made clear
at this stage whether differing spatial and conditional contexts will be
applied.
There was also a lack of clarity from the government regarding the definition
of key terms like ‘community’, ‘future use’, ‘better economic use’,
‘compelling reason’ and ‘market value’. This lack of clarity could lead to
speculative applications from parties that do not truly reflect aspirations of
the community and lead to implications on local authority resources from
having to deal with process of the application. It may also result in proposals
that diverge from emerging place-based strategies and lead to the Council
being directed to dispose of land for an insufficient value.

Page 12

-

Government were also seeking views on potential conditions that should be
imposed, it is considered that conditions would be essential in guaranteeing
appropriate delivery. These could include:
o Agreed uses for any land disposed of aligned to planning policies and
regeneration strategies
o Clear proof of plans, funding and ability to deliver regeneration to be
included in any application.
o To enable public bodies to re-secure land should no regeneration
work be started within a specific time limit
o Valuation to based on any proposed specified uses to ensure the local
authorities would receive the best value.

Members discussed the matter and were fully supportive of the issues raised and
the proposed response.

RESOLVED –
1)
That the draft response to the Right to Regenerate consultation be agreed.
2)
That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director for Planning, Growth
and Sustainability, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Members and
Leader of the Council, to submit the final response, incorporating any
further changes after the Cabinet meeting.
12

Financial Sustainability – comparison to London Borough of Croydon
M Tett, Leader of the Council introduced the report and stated that following the
issuing of a Section 114 notice by Croydon LBC, Cabinet had asked the Council’s
Section 151 Officer to provide a report reviewing the findings of the recent public
interest report over Croydon’s financial failures, together with other reported issues
around financial sustainability in local government, which had been exacerbated as a
result of Covid-19. In addition, report also compared Buckinghamshire Council with
the findings from the public interest report.
In conclusion, it was evident that Buckinghamshire was in a very different place to
LB Croydon and no concerns have been raised by the external auditor. The authority
compared well with others and there was a good record in terms of the legacy
authorities managing spend within their overall budgets. Furthermore, there were
sufficient levels of reserves (unallocated and earmarked), there was high Member
involvement in the budget setting process and a strong Audit and Governance
Committee existed.
However, national pressures in relation to the uncertainty caused by the pandemic
as well as demand and supplier failure pressures, particularly within children’s and
adults services, were still pertinent and there was no room for complacency. In the
medium term there was huge uncertainty around future funding following the
increased government debt as a result of Covid-19.
A number of potential enhancements to financial management were highlighted in

Page 13

section 4 of the report, including a review of the Council’s strategy around
commercial acquisitions, more regular reporting and transparency around subsidiary
interests of the Council, regular reviews of all external loans provided, the reviewing
and strengthening of the finance model / relationships with directorates, the
establishment of budget boards across all directorates and a more regular review of
the Council’s reserves. Appendix 2 sets out a proposed Action Plan.
The report set out further details of the national context about the financial
sustainability of local government, on Croydon LBC, and on the position with
Buckinghamshire Council.
Members commented on the report, and on the proposed Action Plan as follows:

Members were very supportive of the report findings and of the proposed
actions in Appendix 2 to further strengthen financial management
arrangements across the Council.


That the Council’s commercial property portfolio and associated investments
were prudent and were delivering annual returns of 6%. There was good
governance and Member oversight of decision making and provisions had
been made for any future losses that might occur.



Thanks were expressed to R Ambrose (Section 151 Officer) and to the finance
team for the support / guidance they had provided to the Council and
Members over many years.
That the Council would be happy to share the report on the good governance
practices in Buckinghamshire with the LGA, CIPFA or other interested parties.



RESOLVED –
1.
That the contents of the report, including Appendix 1, which sets out the
Buckinghamshire Council position compared to the key finding from the LB
Croydon public interest report, be noted.
2.
That the proposed actions in Appendix 2 to further strengthen financial
management arrangements across the Council be agreed.
13

Collins House & 30 Oxford Road
J Chilver, Cabinet Member for Property and Assets, introduced the report which
asked Cabinet to consider the disposal of the freeholds of Collins House and 30 -34
Oxford Road in High Wycombe for regeneration purposes.
Collins House and 30-34 Oxford Road were prominent vacant sites in Wycombe
town centre, requiring redevelopment. An offer had been received from a housing
association to purchase Collins House, and to develop it for affordable housing. An
offer had also been received from Bucks Colleges to purchase 30-34 Oxford Road for
redevelopment as their proposed new building. Both sites were shown edged red
on the plan in the Cabinet report (the blue triangle was highways land that was the
subject of an old road improvement line). Confirmation was being sort from
Highways that it was surplus to requirements. Detailed terms of the offers were set

Page 14

out in the Confidential Annex at Part 2 of the agenda.
Members discussed and were very supportive of the proposals.
RESOLVED –
1)
To dispose of the freehold of Collins House, Wycombe for redevelopment
as affordable housing.
2)
To facilitate the development of a new town centre building by Bucks
Colleges, by way of the disposal of the freehold of 30 -34 Oxford Road,
Wycombe to them.
3)
That the Director of Property and Assets be authorised, in consultation with
the Cabinet Member for Property and Assets and the S151 Officer, to
finalise detailed heads of terms for the disposal, agree the sale contracts,
and to exchange and complete the disposal based on the heads of terms set
out in the Confidential appendix.
14

Date of next meeting
Thursday 18 March 2021, 12.30pm (Extraordinary meeting)

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Report to Cabinet
Date:

18 March 2021

Title:

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020-21

Relevant councillor(s):

Cllr Martin Tett, Leader

Author and/or contact officer:

Natalie Donhou Morley, Senior Policy Officer & Hannah
Thynne, Head of Policy

Ward(s) affected:

All

Recommendations:

To note the achievements of the Council in 2020-2021
against the objectives outlined in the Buckinghamshire
Council Corporate Plan 2020-2023

Reason for decision:

N/A

1.

Introduction

1.1

On the 1st April the new Buckinghamshire Council was created and the agreed
Corporate Plan for 2020-2023 came into effect.

1.2

The publicly published Corporate Plan set out our 4 priorities for achieving our
strategic outcomes:

1.3



Strengthening our communities



Protecting the vulnerable



Improving our environment



Increasing prosperity

As the first year of the new Council comes to a close, an annual report has been
produced to recognise the (non-Covid related) achievements of the Council against
our corporate objectives. This report sits alongside a complementary ‘Our Covid
Response Report 2020-2021’ which highlights our achievement specifically in
relation to the pandemic response.

Page 17

1.4

The draft Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020-2021 is attached as
Appendix A.

2.

Other options considered

2.1

Not to draft an annual report – does not provide an opportunity to reflect and share
publicly the scale of the work delivered over the last year.

2.2

To include Covid-19 achievements – following a year where the Covid-19 has to
many felt all encompassing, focussing on non-Covid work allows us an opportunity to
reflect on the huge scale of work delivered in spite of the pandemic.

3.

Legal and financial implications

3.1

No legal or financial implications are anticipated.

4.

Corporate implications

4.1

No corporate implications are anticipated.

5.

Local councillors & community boards consultation & views

5.1

The report reflects the council’s corporate priorities agreed by Cabinet.

5.2

The report has been drafted to reflect the activity and work undertaken locally by
Members and Community Boards.

5.3

Feedback from Cabinet Members has been sought in the drafting of this report.

6.

Communication, engagement & further consultation

6.1

N/A

7.

Next steps and review

7.1

The updated report to be taken to Cabinet on 18 March 2021.

7.2

Once approved, the report will be published on our website.

8.

Background papers

8.1

The Buckinghamshire Council Corporate Plan 2020-2023

9.

Your questions and views (for key decisions)

9.1

If you have any questions about the matters contained in this report please get in
touch with the author of this report. If you have any views that you would like the

Page 18

cabinet member to consider please inform the democratic services team. This can be
done by telephone 01296 382343 or email democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

Buckinghamshire Council

Annual Report
Appendix

Page 21

2020/21

Foreword

On 1 April 2020, we became a new organisation, establishing the new Buckinghamshire Council, providing all council
services to all of our Buckinghamshire residents as one team.
This change came at an incredibly testing time but I am so proud of how our teams have risen to the challenge. We have been
working exceptionally hard to support our residents through the coronavirus crisis as well as delivering our usual services.
This annual report reflects the achievements of Buckinghamshire Council against our Corporate Plan priorities in its very
first year, outside of our coronavirus response. (A separate report will consider the work that the Council has done with its
partners to support Buckinghamshire during the pandemic). As a Council, all Members have played a key role in the delivery
of our achievements for our residents, communities, and businesses over the last year. Whilst we can look back and be proud
of what we have achieved, the challenges of the pandemic will certainly remain with us over the coming months and beyond.
We will have to make some difficult decisions in the short-term to balance our budget to make sure we continue to protect
and support our residents who are vulnerable and in need.
However, as a newly formed Council, we have a unique opportunity to improve the services we provide and accelerate the
county’s success and prosperity in the future. The next twelve months offer much hope for the future and we will spend it
building on the positive changes we have already made this year as well as focussing on recovery, growth and
increasing our resilience and agility.
Our vision for Buckinghamshire has not changed and we remain dedicated to making
Buckinghamshire the best place to live, raise a family, work and do business.
I’m pleased to be able to reflect in this report how we have made a flying start to our journey
as a new Council and how in the next twelve months, we will build on these excellent foundations.
Martin Tett
Leader, Buckinghamshire Council

Page 22
2

Buckinghamshire
Council Cabinet
Members

Martin Tett

Angela Macpherson

Katrina Wood

Leader

Deputy Leader and
Adult Social Care

Deputy Leader
and Resources

Page 23

Steve Bowles

Bill Chapple OBE

John Chilver

Anita Cranmer

Isobel Darby

Tony Green

Clive Harriss

Town Centre
Regeneration

Environment and
Climate Change

Property and Assets

Education and Skills

Housing and
Homelessness

Youth Provision

Sports and Leisure

Patrick Hogan

David Martin

Nick Naylor

Mark Shaw

Warren Whyte

Gareth Williams

Fred Wilson

Culture

Logistics

Transportation

Children’s Services

Planning &
Enforcement

Communities &
Public Health

Regulatory Services

3

Our Key
Priorities
Buckinghamshire Council’s Corporate Plan for
2020-23 set out the key activities the Council planned
to undertake over that three year period in order to
achieve its strategic objectives and vision.
This annual report shows what was achieved during
2020/21 under the following priority headings:
1. Strengthening our communities
2. Protecting the vulnerable
3. Improving our environment
4. Increasing prosperity
We have also included information around our
achievements as a new organisation with regards
to our people and internal developments.

Page 24
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

4

Strengthening
our communities
People in Buckinghamshire are living longer and healthier lives than ever
before, with health outcomes better than the national average. We have
strong communities and a thriving, dedicated not for profit sector.
Buckinghamshire is a healthy and inclusive place to live, work and
visit but we have a number of challenges. These include building more
affordable homes now and for future generations, providing extra help
and support for an increasingly older population and improving the
health of people who live in the more deprived areas of Buckinghamshire.

Page 25
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

5

Strengthening our communities
Our achievements this year


 
   



 

 

  



  








 
  

 


   
 

 
 





 

  
 
 
 

 


    

    
    


 








 

Page 26

 
  

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

  
 





 
 



6



  
  
  






  

 
  
 
  

  
 
     

  
 
 


  
   


Page 27


    
    
  

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21



    
     


   


 
  
  

  
  
    
   

   
   
    
    


   
      
   
  
 





 

  

 
  
   
  
    

     
   
  
   


7

Protecting
the vulnerable
While most people in Buckinghamshire live independent and healthy lives,
some need extra support and protection. We know that the number of
children and adults who need this extra help is increasing. There are also
rising numbers of people with mental health difficulties, special educational
needs, disabilities and complex needs.
We want to give everyone the best chances in life, so that – together with
their families and carers - they are resilient and can identify their own
solutions. We will continue to work with our partners and communities to
innovate and improve our offer, helping people recover from illness sooner,
promoting fostering, reducing social isolation and loneliness, and supporting
our most vulnerable residents.
Our goal is to reduce inequalities and give everyone the support and skills
they need to live independent, happy and fulfilling lives.

Page 28
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

8

Protecting the vulnerable
Our achievements this year

  
    

 




 
  

 




  
 


 



 
   


Page 29




 

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21


  
 



 





 



 
 
 
 

  
   
  

   

  

  
 
 

 

   
  
  
  
  



   






 
  
  
 
9

 





     

  
   

 

 
  
   
    

      


Page 30

 
 
   
 
   


Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

    

  

 
  
   
    
    
   
  
   
  
  
   
  

  
  
 



   
  
   
    

 
 
 
     
  



  
   


 
 
    

   
  
    
   
  
  
  


   
  


  


   


 

 
  
 
   
10

Improving our
environment
Buckinghamshire is a beautiful county and our stunning natural and
historic landscape is valued by all. Over a quarter of our county is
within the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and a further
third is covered by the Metropolitan Green Belt.
We know we have to deliver more homes and associated infrastructure
for our growing population. By managing growth sensibly and
responsibly, we can protect and enhance our natural environment and
the benefits it brings. Aylesbury Garden Town is an exciting example:
putting green spaces and natural environments at the heart of future
development.

Page 31
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

11

Improving our environment
Our achievements this year


 





 

   
 

 

 


 



 


  
  






  
  






 

 

Page 32



 

 


Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

 
 

 
 
 







 
  



  
 



 

12

 
     
     
        
   

  



  

    
     
     
   


 
      
        
     

   

 
    
   
  

   
 
    
     
    

 
 
 

  
    
  
Page 33
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

       
   
    
      

    
 
     

  
    
    
   
     
    
  

   
    
   
   
       





  
 


   
  

13

Increasing prosperity

Buckinghamshire is a prosperous county and a successful place to do
business, contributing £14.8 billion to the UK economy and ranked as the
fourth most productive area in England.
The county has low unemployment, higher than average household
incomes, and boasts world-leading sectors. From Pinewood Studios in
the south to Silverstone in the north, Buckinghamshire is a great success
story. We are also well placed to take advantage of emerging opportunities
because of our proximity to London and Heathrow, and our location in the
middle of the Oxford to Cambridge Arc (a leading economic area with global
strengths in science, technology and high-value manufacturing).
However, the national trend shows that high levels of productivity and
growth are beginning to slow, and action is needed now to ensure our
economy remains fit for the future.

Page 34
Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

14

Increasing prosperity
Our achievements this year
 

  
 
   




 
   
   
  

Page 35

     
      
    
    
   

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

   
   

    

     
   
  
  

       
    
     
     
 

   
     
      
  
    

 
   
     
  
  

     
     
    


    
   
     
 
  

15

  
   
 
  


     
  
     
  



  

  
  
  
   
 
   

Page 36

    
 
  
   
 
     
 

Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

  
    

 
   

   
  
  

     
  

  
     
  

  
    
    

16

Building, leading and managing the new organisation
Our achievements this year
  



  
     
      
  

   
   
   
    
 
 
  

  
   
  
  
  




    
   
    

  
      
  

  

    
  
 
   
   
   
   
    

Page 37

   

  
    
 
    

 



    


     

 



Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020/21

    
   

 
   

   
    
 
 
   
 
  
 




 
 

   
  

  
  
   
   
  

17

The next chapter
The COVID-19 pandemic is a pivotal event for our generation; a time when the nation has relied on
public services like never before. Moving forward, we have an opportunity to reshape our services
around people and communities as we continue to evolve as an organisation. The response to the
pandemic has shown us the power of collaboration; what public services, businesses and local people
can achieve together and as the peak of the crisis passes, it is now time to think about what comes next
and what could look different.
We are already reflecting on the lessons learned from the pandemic, and are seeking to maintain the
positive experiences, as well as learn from the challenges, as part of our recovery planning. Our recovery
and growth proposition to central government is pivotal to this and we look forward to continuing our
discussions with the government about this in the coming months.
This year will see Buckinghamshire Council meet a key post-unitary milestone as we go through elections
that were previously delayed. This will bring changes to our democratic organisation as we elect the 147
members who will help us to deliver the strategic ambitions of the authority.
As we continue to work towards realisation of the Bucks vision we will maximise the benefits of uniterisation
and we will maintain collaboration with our partners to make sure Buckinghamshire grows as a thriving,
resilient and successful county. By listening to local voices, offering local choices and delivering local
action, Buckinghamshire Council will continue to deliver on its ambitions and priorities to make

Buckinghamshire the best place to live, raise a family, work and do business.

Page 38
18

Page 39

buckinghamshire.gov.uk

@BucksCouncil

March 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report to Cabinet
Date:

18 March 2021

Title:

Buckinghamshire Council Our Response to Covid-19
2020 - 2021

Relevant councillor(s):

Cllr Martin Tett, Leader

Author and/or contact officer:

Natalie Donhou Morley

Ward(s) affected:

All

Recommendations:

To note the response of the Council to Covid as detailed
in the attached report.

Reason for decision:

N/A

1.

Introduction

1.1

In early March last year it became clear that the Covid-19 outbreak was likely to have
huge implications for the UK, with a national lockdown implemented on the 24th
March 2020.

1.2

The ‘Buckinghamshire Council - Our Response to Covid-19 2020-21’ report is
attached at Appendix 1 and reflects on the responses and achievements of the
Council, including those delivered in partnership with others, during the
unprecedented challenges faced over the last year.

1.3

This report sits alongside the Buckinghamshire Council Annual Report 2020-2021,
which reflects our successes and achievements delivered against the corporate plan
during the inaugural year as the Buckinghamshire Council.

2.

Other options considered

2.1

Not to progress the Covid-19 Response report – does not provide an opportunity to
reflect and share publicly the scale of the work delivered over the last year.

Page 41

3.

Legal and financial implications

3.1

No legal or financial implications are anticipated.

4.

Corporate implications

4.1

No corporate implications are anticipated.

5.

Local councillors & community boards consultation & views

5.1

The report has been drafted to reflect the activity and work undertaken locally by
Members and Community Boards.

5.2

Feedback from Cabinet Members has been sought in the drafting of this report.

6.

Communication, engagement & further consultation

6.1

N/A

7.

Next steps and review

7.1

Report will be taken to Cabinet on 18th March.

7.2

Once approved, the report will be published on our website.

8.

Background papers

8.1

Buckinghamshire Council – implications of coronavirus (presented to Cabinet on 26
May 2020)

9.

Your questions and views (for key decisions)

9.1

If you have any questions about the matters contained in this report please get in
touch with the author of this report. If you have any views that you would like the
cabinet member to consider please inform the democratic services team. This can be
done by telephone 01296 382343 or email democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Page 42

Buckinghamshire Council

Our response to COVID-19
Page 43

Appendix

2020 - 2021

Introduction

When the new Buckinghamshire Council came into being on 1 April 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic was reaching its first
peak and the country had been plunged into an unprecedented full lockdown for just over a week. Virtually overnight,
local authorities were diverted to responding to this ‘once in a lifetime’ emergency. Instead of the anticipated celebration
of the launch of our new organisation and the benefits this would bring to the county, we were helping our homeless into
emergency accommodation, co-ordinating volunteer groups, redeploying staff, adjusting the operation of most of our
services and rapidly mobilising to protect our most vulnerable.
A year on it is only right that we reflect on how Members, staff and our many partners have responded to the challenges
of the pandemic whilst continuing to deliver critical public services which have been vital in maintaining as much
normality as possible.
This report recognises the achievements of Buckinghamshire Council and our partners during our response to the
coronavirus pandemic and the implications this has had for council services, outside of our normal service delivery.
Alongside this we have also produced an Annual Report which focusses on the many ‘Business as Usual’ achievements
made during this extraordinary year.
A real strength that allowed us to respond to the crisis on such a firm footing last March was that the work to create
a strong foundation for the new council had already been completed. The CEO had put in place a senior management
structure to Service Director (Tier 3) level and there had been comprehensive engagement with staff in all predecessor
organisations to ensure that they knew where they sat within the new organisation and were ‘brigaded’ to create single
teams. There was an understanding of the financial basis for the new council, an IT infrastructure to ensure we could
communicate and work as one, and the policy infrastructure to provide consistent and appropriate decision making
as required. This comprehensive and proactive work proved to be invaluable when the first national ‘lockdown’ was
introduced on 23 March 2020 and the majority of our staff were required to work from home.

Page 44

Our response to the pandemic continues and is being led at both a senior political and officer level through a robust
governance model. This includes Member involvement through the Members Recovery Board, which is working closely
with the Health Protection Board, chaired by the new council’s Chief Executive, and which involves the council and 		
many strategic partners.
2

Early on in the pandemic a number of emergency response cells were established to lead critical areas of our response.
These cells are led by senior staff, who work with our local members, the NHS, businesses, voluntary community sector
organisations and other partners in supporting our residents and businesses across the county to remain safe and healthy
and to reduce the spread of the virus.
In the initial response to the pandemic, many of our workforce volunteered to be repurposed and many are still working
directly on responding to the pandemic. This has been critical as the council has been required to stand up a number
of new services in response to the pandemic. We reprioritised both staff and resources to where we needed them most
– with a focus on our most vulnerable and those who needed to shield due to the pandemic. We have also been a key
player in supporting many essential response services, such as the Olympic Lodge reablement unit, the Helping Hand
programme, the vaccine delivery programme, establishing Lateral Flow Testing sites and the NHS Test and Trace system.
Although the summer offered some respite, the autumn of last year brought with it the fresh challenge of the new variant
of the virus which quickly took hold. Very rapidly, this created significant pressures on our local health services in the run
up to Christmas, and at a time when demand is already very high. As a result, a Major Incident was declared both within
the county and across the Thames Valley area.
The situation has most definitely improved since then; a third national lockdown has seen a significant reduction 		
in infection rates, and vaccination programme has been successfully rolled out with tens of thousands of Bucks
residents now vaccinated, and the government has released its cautious roadmap for recovery. We hope we are
finally in a situation where we can see the light at the end of the tunnel, and that a return to a more normal existence is
within our grasp.
The role of local government has been crucial over the last year. Our dynamic response and our
achievements, particularly as such a young organisation and in the midst of such a major crisis, have
been incredible. I am very proud of how Members, staff and partners have come together to support
the residents, communities and businesses of Buckinghamshire. Moving forward, we have so much
learning from the last year to take with us as we move our new Council into recovery and continue
to become even fitter and stronger as we fully emerge from this crisis.
Martin Tett
Leader, Buckinghamshire Council
Page 45
3

Buckinghamshire
Council Cabinet
Members

Martin Tett

Angela Macpherson

Katrina Wood

Leader

Deputy Leader and
Adult Social Care

Deputy Leader
and Resources

Page 46

Steve Bowles

Bill Chapple OBE

John Chilver

Anita Cranmer

Isobel Darby

Tony Green

Clive Harriss

Town Centre
Regeneration

Environment and
Climate Change

Property and Assets

Education and Skills

Housing and
Homelessness

Youth Provision

Sports and Leisure

Patrick Hogan

David Martin

Nick Naylor

Mark Shaw

Warren Whyte

Gareth Williams

Fred Wilson

Culture

Logistics

Transportation

Children’s Services

Planning &
Enforcement

Communities &
Public Health

Regulatory Services

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

4

Summary of the year
   
    







 


 


  
 

 
 


  
 

 




 


 


 

 
 


 






 




  
 


 


 


 


 

 


 
 

 
  


 


Page 47
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

5

Working in
Partnership
The past year has further demonstrated the significance and value of
partnership working. Our strong partnerships have been critical to our
response whilst supporting our most vulnerable residents.
Working with partners through groups such as the Thames Valley
Local Resilience Forum Strategic Coordinating Group with other local
authorities, healthcare providers and emergency services has enabled
us to provide a combined response both locally and further afield.

Working in partnership with Central
Government, NHS, Fire Service and More

Of greatest significance however has been the fantastic work in localities
with local members, organisations and voluntary groups. This together
with our newly established Community Boards and Town and Parish
Councils have created a substantial platform locally that has enabled
the us to understand and respond to challenges faced at a local level,
identifying new and innovative ways to support our communities.

Page 48
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

GP Matthew Robinson preparing
vaccines at Adam’s Park

6

Working in Partnership
  
   
    
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 




    



 
     
 
   
  
     





Page 49

  
  
     


Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

  
    
  
     
   
   

 

  

      
     
  
   
  
    
  
   
    
 
    
     
     
  

    
    
  
     
   

  
   
       
  
     
    
   
   

 
 
   
   
     
 
  
       
     
    
  
     
      
 
   
    
   
 
  
7


   
 
      
   

 
   
  
 
    
  
  
 
 
  
  





 

   
  
 
 
   
   
   

Page 50

   
   
   
 
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021







 
   
   
    
   
       
   




 
   

   
 
  
  
  
  
   
   
    
 
  
 
  
    
 

 


   
  
 
   
 

 



 
   
 
     
  
   
 
   
    
  
  
     
   
   
   
     
 
     
 
    
  
8

Supporting our residents
During the last 12 months we have supported more residents than ever before.
Many households were forced to shield, self isolate or experienced furlough and
this in turn exasperated already difficult situations. Households struggled to access
essential goods and medicines and many more suffered and continue to suffer
financial hardship and increased risk of family breakdown and domestic violence.
The pandemic and the resulting lockdowns also presented challenges for children,
families and those without local support systems and we put together a range of
provisions to help depending on individual circumstances.

Page 51
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

Bernie the Bus delivering food throughout the
Waddesdon local area and the surrounding villages.

9

Supporting our residents
   
 

  
    
  
   
 
 
      
   




   
   
 
   

 
  
 
 

Page 52

 
  
   
 

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

  
  
 
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 


 

  
  

 
 
    
   

  
   
  


   
   
 
   
 
 
  
  

 

 
  
 
     

     
  
10

    
 
 

   
       
     
    
 
   
    
  
   
   
  
  
    
      
     
      


Page 53

    
      
   

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021




   




   
 

 


 

   
 
    
  
    
   
 
   

  
   
    



 
    
     
 


  
 

     

    
    
    
      
 

     
  
  
  
   
 
   
   
  
    
   
   
  
  
  
   
 
   
  
   

 
  
   
11

Supporting our
businesses
Buckinghamshire Council, in partnership with Bucks Business First and the
Bucks Local Enterprise Partnership, continues to co-ordinate local measures
to support Buckinghamshire businesses. In order to create a straight-forward
interface for businesses, callouts are routed through to Buckinghamshire
Business First (BBF) in the first instance who then use their established
mechanism for engaging businesses. BBF send a regular newsletter to over
9,000 businesses and host a Twitter Q&A every week.
In addition to administering the local distribution of the national business grant
and business rate suspension initiatives, a Business Resilience Fund has been
established through the Local Enterprise Partnership. A total of £2m in Local
Growth Fund money has been put towards a new resilience fund. The fund
is to provide support to businesses which are not eligible for the Government
business grants or business rates holidays with Buckinghamshire being one of
the first authorities to launch discretionary grants.

Page 54
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

Signage used as part of the plan to reopen
the high streets afyter Lockdown 1

Merry Clickmas campaign to encourage
online shopping from local businesses

12

Supporting our businesses



  
 
   





 





  
  
 
   
    




   
    
 
     
   

Page 55

  
 

 
    
   
 

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

 
 
  
   
   
 

  
 
  
   

  
   

 

  
  
         
   
       
  

  
      
 
 

13

Communications
Extensive communications have underpinned the work that has been delivered
across all of our work during the Covid pandemic. Existing channels have been
utilised and new channels created to ensure we have kept residents and staff
informed and reassured, from delivering public health mass media campaigns
to hosting daily vlogs and establishing new social media channels.
Regular communications activity includes weekly updates to Town and Parish
Councils, as well as twice weekly telephone conferences with local councils,
and regular updates to our strategic partners. We have produced an electronic
community pack for local councils which contains a wealth of information to
help them respond locally and we sought to improve communication with
some specific groups of young people as a result of virtual video visiting.
Social workers have reported having more detailed and helpful interactions
as a result.
We also launched the #ProudofBucks campaign that highlighted just some
of the fantastic local initiatives and activities to support the residents of the
county and examples of work undertaken by council staff to galvanise the
community spirit across Buckinghamshire.

Page 56
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

An example of the Stay Safe, Protect Bucks
signage which has been used across the county

14

No excuses video aimed at young people

Bollard graphic for phase 2 of Stay Safe Protect Bucks

No excuses campaign flyer for phase 3 of Stay
Safe Protect Bucks

Rapid rise of
coronavirus
cases in
this area

Rapid rise of
coronavirus
cases in
this area

Rapid rise of
coronavirus
cases in
this area

Page 57

Mental health social media graphic aimed at young people

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

15

Flyers in various language formats

Lateral flow testing poster

ਟੈਕਸੀ ਅਤੇ ਨਿੱਜੀ ਨਕਰਾਏ ਵਾਲੇ ਵਾਹਿਾਂ ਵਾਸਤੇ ਕੋਰਿ
ੋ ਵਾਇਰਸ
(COVID-19) ਸਬੰਨਿਤ ਸੁਰਨੱ ਿਆ ਦੇ ਸੁਝਾਅ




ਟੈਸਟ ਕਰਵਾਓ

ਜੇ ਤੁ ਹਾਡੇ ਨਵੱਚ ਕੋਈ ਲੱਛਣ ਹਿ ਤਾਂ ਤੁ ਹਾਿੂ ੰ ਕੰਮ ਕਰਿਾ ਬੰਦ ਕਰ ਦੇਣਾ ਚਾਹੀਦਾ ਹੈ, ਘਰ ਨਵੱਚ
ਸਵੈ-ਅਲਨਹਦਗੀ ਕਰਿੀ ਚਾਹੀਦੀ ਹੈ ਅਤੇ ਤੁ ਰੰਤ ਮੁਫਤ ਟੈਸਟ ਕਰਵਾਉਣਾ ਚਾਹੀਦਾ ਹੈ


   

ਚੰਗੀ ਸਾਫ਼-ਸਫ਼ਾਈ

ਆਪਣੇ ਹੱਥਾਂ ਿੂ ੰ ਘੱਟੋ ਘੱਟ 20 ਸਨਕੰਟਾਂ ਲਈ ਿੋਵੋ ਜਾਂ ਹੈੰਡ ਸੈਿੀਟਾਈਜ਼ਰ ਦੀ ਵਰਤੋਂ ਕਰੋ। ਜਦੋਂ ਵੀ
ਤੁ ਸੀਂ ਆਪਣੇ ਨਚਹਰੇ ਦੇ ਮਾਸਕ ਿੂ ੰ ਬਦਲਦੇ ਜਾਂ ਛੂ ਹਦੇ ਹੋ ਤਾਂ ਅਨਜਹਾ ਕਰਿ ਦੀ ਕੋਨਸਸ ਕਰੋ
ਆਪਣੇ ਡ੍ ਾਇਨਵੰਗ ਸਥਾਿ ਅਤੇ ਸਟੇਅਨਰੰਗ ਪਹੀਏ ਿੂ ੰ ਨਿਯਨਮਤ ਤੌਰ 'ਤੇ ਸਾਫ ਕਰੋ
ਹਰ ਨਕਰਾਏ ਤੋਂ ਬਾਅਦ, ਆਪਣੀ ਕਾਰ ਨਵੱਚ ਉਿ੍ ਾਂ ਸਤਹਾਂ 'ਤੇ ਨਜੰਿ੍ਾਂ ਿੂ ੰ ਤੁ ਸੀਂ ਅਤੇ ਤੁ ਹਾਡੇ ਗਾਹਕ
ਛੂ ਹਦੇ ਹੋ, ਐਂਟੀ-ਬੈਕਟੀਰੀਅਲ ਪੂੰਨਝਆਂ/ਕੀਟਾਣੂ ਿਾਸਕ ਸਪਰੇਅ ਅਤੇ ਇੱਕ ਕਪੜੇ ਦੀ ਵਰਤੋਂ ਕਰੋ
ਨਜਸ ਨਵੱਚ ਦਰਵਾਜ਼ੇ ਦੇ ਹੈਂਡਲ, ਫੜਿ ਵਾਲੇ ਹੈਂਡਲ ਅਤੇ ਸੀਟਾਂ ਸਾਮਲ ਹਿ
ਨਚਹਰੇ ਉੱਤੇ ਇੱਕ ਮਾਸਕ ਪਨਹਿੋ ਨਸਵਾਏ ਇਸ ਦੇ ਨਕ ਤੁ ਹਾਿੂ ੰ ਛੋਟ ਪ੍ਾਪਤ ਹੈ

  
 
2m

  
 

ਨਕਰਾਏ ਦੀ ਉਡੀਕ ਕਰਦੇ ਸਮੇਂ

ਜਦੋਂ ਵੀ ਸੰਭਵ ਹੋਵੇ ਆਪਣੀ ਕਾਰ ਦੇ ਅੰਦਰ ਰਹੋ
ਆਪਣੀ ਕਾਰ ਤੋਂ ਬਾਹਰ ਹੋਣ 'ਤੇ, ਦੂ ਨਜਆਂ ਤੋਂ ਦੂ ਰੀ ਬਣਾਈ ਰੱਿੋ

Around 1 in 3 people with COVID-19 have no symptoms so could be
spreading the disease without knowing it

ਸੁਚੇਤ ਰਹੋ

ਜੋਨਿਮ ਿੂ ੰ ਘੱਟ ਕਰਿ ਲਈ ਹੇਠ ਨਲਿੀਆਂ ਚੀਜ਼ਾਂ ਕਰੋ:
- ਹਵਾਦਾਰੀ ਨਵੱਚ ਸੁਿਾਰ ਕਰਿ ਲਈ ਆਪਣੀਆਂ ਨਿੜਕੀਆਂ ਿੁੱਲ੍ੀਆਂ ਰੱਿੋ
- ਆਪਣੀ ਏਅਰ ਕੰਡੀਸਨਿੰਗ 'ਤੇ ਰੀਸਰਕੁ ਲੇਸਿ ਮੋਡ ਦੀ ਵਰਤੋਂ ਿਾ ਕਰੋ
- ਇੱਕ ਸਕਰੀਿ ਲਗਾਉਣ 'ਤੇ ਨਵਚਾਰ ਕਰੋ
- ਆਪਣੇ ਯਾਤਰੀਆਂ ਿੂ ੰ ਫੇਸ ਮਾਸਕ ਪਨਹਿਣ ਲਈ ਕਹੋ ਨਸਵਾਏ ਉਹਿਾਂ ਿੂ ੰ ਛੋਟ ਨਦੱਤੀ ਗਈ ਹੈ
- ਆਪਣੇ ਯਾਤਰੀਆਂ ਿੂ ੰ ਨਪੱਛੇ ਬੈਠਣ ਲਈ ਕਹੋ

 
  

ਆਪਣੇ ਲਾਇਸੰਸ ਿੂ ੰ ਿਤਰੇ ਨਵੱਚ
ਿਾ ਪਾਓ - ਹਮੇਸਾ COVID
ਨਿਯਮਾਂ ਦੀ ਪਾਲਣਾ ਕਰੋ

 

buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus

Free, fast COVID-19 tests are now available
in Buckinghamshire.

Rapid testing is a fast and free way for people without symptoms to
find out if they have the virus. Rapid tests are available to anybody
who needs to leave home to work or volunteer.
The test only takes 15 minutes and results are available in about 45
minutes. Just turn up or attentively book a test slot online.
To find a test centre near you and to book your test please visit:
buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/bookarapidtest/

01296 395000

You can help break the chain of infection by getting tested regularly.
Remember - hands, face, space.

#StaySafeProtectBucks

Myth busting poster and social media graphics

COVID-19 Vaccine
Accurate information helps you
make an informed decision
You can help out by
• Checking the facts
• Correcting wrong

information in group
chats

• Stop and think

– does it sound right?

Page 58

For COVID FAQs visit:
buckinghamshire.gov.uk and search COVID FAQs

@BucksCouncil

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

16

Communications








  


 

   
 

 

 









  

  

  

 
Page 59


 

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021




 

 


 

  
   
  

 

    
 
  

  
 

 

  

 
 





 
    
   
 

 

17

Impact on services
There is not a single area of local government that has not been affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, we have pooled our resources,
responding to new problems with innovative solutions, and also looked
for opportunities to improve our services for residents and staff whilst
rapidly responding to the pandemic and its associated challenges.

Page 60
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

A big thank you to the Buckinghamshire Council
waste crews, who worked throughout the lockdowns

Buckinghamshire Council staff member working
from home, making calls to vulnerable residents

18

Impact on services


     

 
  

 
  
   

     
  
      
 

  
 
   
   
 

 

  
    
       
   
   
      
   
   

 

Page 61

   
  
 

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

 

    
     


    
    

     
   
    

    
  
    
  
     
    
  

       
     
 



   

 



19

 
  
    
      
   

  
  
     
   


  
  
 
 

Page 62

   
   
  
  

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021


   
 
  
    
  
  


   
   

 
  
   

 
 
 

 
   
   
   

 

  
  

   





  
 



  
   



 

    

   
   
    

 

20

Testing and Vaccine
Testing has been a pivotal tool in the fight to contain coronavirus. Our options
of walk in, drive through and mobile sites have enabled those with symptoms
to get tested and, if required self isolate following a positive result. In recent
weeks, the launching of lateral flow testing for those who are non-symptomatic
provides another tool for reducing the spread of infection alongside our local
contact tracing. In addition, we have prepared for and initiated surge testing as
required in local communities.
People have waiting patiently for the vaccination process to begin in
Buckinghamshire, with the first priority cohort invited to receive their
vaccinations in December 2020. The vaccination campaign, the largest
vaccination programme in history, has been hailed as one of the most
important in this generation and will likely save many millions of lives.
The programme itself has been coordinated and delivered thanks to a wide
range of partners and the Council has taken an active role in the programme
including local leadership, logistics, project management and communications.

Page 63
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

Brian Horne (the first person to be vaccinated in
Buckinghamshire) receives the first dose of his
COVID-19 vaccine from nurse Helen Ellis

21

Buckinghamshire Council Staff at the Aylesbury test site

Page 64

Sheila Cossins receiving her vaccination, administered by
GP Matthew Robinson at Adams Park on 7 January 2021

Matt Hancock visiting Stoke Mandeville Stadium site

Krishnamurthy Natarajan waiting for his vaccination
at Chesham Town Hall on 6 January 2021

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

Chesham Town Hall vaccination prep team Denise Parslow, Arjun Patel, Caroline Batchelor

22

Testing and Vaccine

      
   
  
   
 
   
   
   
    


   
 
  
 
    

    
 
Page 65

  
  
    

Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

      
   

   
  
  
   
   



 

 
  
 


  
 


   

   


   
 
   
    

    
 
   
    
    

  
 
 
  

  
  
      
   
  
   




  
     
 
 
  
 
23

Financial
implications
We have incurred significant additional costs and seen income in many areas
reduced in the face of the coronavirus pandemic. We have lost income in a range
of areas, including parking revenue, planning applications, council tax and business
rates and rental from property we own. We have incurred additional costs in providing
extra support to our most vulnerable, supporting local businesses, the need to buy-in
additional Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and other one off costs linked to 		
the pandemic.
The fallout of the coronavirus pandemic is likely to affect the council and the delivery
of its services for several years to come. The budget and budget priorities reflect this.
However, we have received a total of 50 Grants in the financial year 2020/21, c£288m
to support the Covid-19 pandemic response across a broad spectrum of activities
in the delivery of services and support the council’s residents, businesses and
organisations. We anticipate that the majority of this will be spent by 31st March with
some limited funds carried forward to next year for ongoing support and activities that
will need to continue.
Funding delivered locally has supported local Test and Trace schemes, work
undertaken to help the Contain Management Outbreak activities, Support for the
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable and Rapid Testing as well as grants such as Dedicated
Home to School Transport Grant and Winter Grant Scheme in addition to the business
and economic grants to support businesses impacted by restrictions or lockdown.

Page 66
Buckinghamshire Council: Our response to COVID-19 - 2020/2021

Socially distant tables set up in
Aylesbury Market Square

24

Legacy for the New Council
The pandemic is not yet over and COVID-19 has had a huge impact on all of us. Lives have been lost, many have been
bereaved and many peoples’ lives have been changed over the last twelve months.
At the time of writing, there is room for optimism. Infection and death rates are falling, the vaccine rollout is well under
way and new and effective treatments and testing methods continue to be developed.
Local people have played a huge role, from key workers to following the rules and staying at home; it all plays a part in
reducing infection rates locally whilst keeping key services running and making sure residents can access the support
they need, especially those who are most vulnerable.
Our Helping Hand scheme has provided vital support to households who need it, helping provide food and help with
heating costs for families. Our newly established Community Boards mean local people have a direct influence on
decisions made in their own areas, be they related to the pandemic or not, it means local people have a strong voice and
can feed directly into matters that directly impact them.
Our voluntary and community sectors have provided vital support to us and our communities during the pandemic and
we plan to continue to embrace this place-based approach to recovery, seeking to coordinate activity across the county
to avoid duplication and manage dependencies. Public–private cooperation at a local level has also surged and we are
keen to maintain our leadership role in these relationships as we build foundations for the future.

Page 67
25

The challenges during these unprecedented times have pushed us to be more innovative, agile and collaborative than
ever before. We have also seen a major shift towards digital service delivery, greater acceptance of information and
resource sharing, a radical shift towards home based work, and a move away from the regular large meetings that used
to be the norm. How we communicate has also changed, with communities given information about our services in more
ways than ever before.
We are very optimistic about all the last twelve months has taught us, and what we can take forward as we move
into recovery. The lessons learned must be seized and embedded within the foundations of the council to ensure that
Buckinghamshire is the best place to live, raise a family, work and do business. Our recovery plans reflect how we hope
to build on the work completed during the pandemic, shaping and delivering against social, economic and environmental
priorities for Buckinghamshire
Thank you to everyone for the tremendous community spirit, hard work, for looking out for each other.
We are so proud of Buckinghamshire and how it has rallied during this crisis.
Please continue to keep doing everything you can to help Buckinghamshire stay safe and open.
Stay Safe, Protect Bucks

Page 68
26

Page 69

buckinghamshire.gov.uk

@BucksCouncil

March 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

The place you live
The people you know

Appendix

Page 71

A selection of stories and examples of people in Buckinghamshire
helping their communities during the Covid-19 pandemic.

1
•

•

•

•

2

Wendover Youth Centre
Pen Pals: Young people are writing
letters and emails to elderly isolated
people.
Food Parcels: Young people are
preparing food parcels for those who
are in need.
Family Phone Calls: Young people
and their families are calling isolated
individuals to help reduce loneliness.
Youth Work Sessions: multiple times
a week through group zoom chats.

Seerah Today - Wycombe

Page 72

Delivering emergency same day food
supplies, with the help of volunteers
including the Exiled Bikers; a
philanthropist local bike group and
donations from the public, including
Thara Store Castlefield and Mak Foods
Totteridge.

Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

3

Buckinghamshire Council
IT department

Enabling not only the council services but
the GPs and the NHS to function during
lockdown, by moving everyone onto
teams in record time.

4

Paul Kelly & Woodstocks
Coffee house

In conjunction with Paul Kelly,
Woodstocks Coffee House have been
delivering a home-cooked, lunchtime
meal, on a daily basis to local elderly
residents currently in self-isolation,
who have no family in the area that can
support them. This service is free of
charge to those in need and is being
funded by Mr. Kelly, for a limited time.

5

Denham Community
Support

James Foraye, a small business owner and
graphic designer at Prontaprint used his
resources and skills to design a website,
leaflets, ID badges for volunteers, and
coordinated a community response to
support people self-isolating in Denham.
He has had some great feedback from
local residents.

6

The Risborough Basket

Supporting people to stay at home by
setting up a free local grocery delivery
service.

7

Bin collectors

Meeting the challenge and collecting
kerbside waste despite staff shortages.

2

8

Buckinghamshire Council
Social Care teams, NHS
staff and volunteers

Repurposing The Olympic Lodge into
a 240 bed care centre for the vulnerable,
freeing up vital hospital beds.

9

Meals from Marlow

Local celeb chef Tom Kerridge
alongside volunteers, business and
Marlow Town Council are aiming to
deliver 25K free meals to NHS staff
and those most in need.

11

Rising to the challenge of keeping the
council running and helping communities
during the COVID-19 crisis. (whilst also
launching a brand new council!)

12

Stoke Mandeville
Community Support

80+ volunteers, inc Bucks and
Parish council staff, helping locals
who are self-isolating. Getting their
shopping, prescriptions and making
friendly phonecalls.

Page 73
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

15

Bledlow / Saunderton
Parish Council

Using their Good Neighbour Scheme to
help support locals in need of extra help
and telephone contact.

14

Childminders and
child carers

For continuing to look after key workers’
children so they can carry on doing
their jobs

17
Stoke Poges Good
Neighbourhood Scheme
(SPGNS)

Daniel Austin

Producing over 1000 3D printed ‘ear
savers’ for face masks worn by health
and care workers.

16

Organising mass deliveries of grocery
and medicines to all Parish residents.

13
10

Buckinghamshire
council staff

Restore Hope,
Chiltern Food bank,
Bernwode Community
Bus and local volunteers

For providing and delivering
hundreds of Easter eggs and toys to
disadvantaged children across Bucks.

Waddesdon Manor
Aspire School

Delivering free school meals to pupils
and vulnerable people in the area.
3

Page 74
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

4

18

Local support group in
Whitchurch

Set up by the local Church, now has 39
volunteers offering help in the village and
supporting anyone who needs them.

19

Sophie Jugé and students

Creating an uplifting version of ABBA’s
‘Thank you for the music’. ‘Heroes to me’
thanks key workers, health and social
care staff keeping us safe and supported.

20

Sir William Ramsay, Stowe,
Beachborough and
Westbury schools + the
University of Buckingham

Producing personal protective equipment
for health and social care workers.

23

Our Councillors

For their hard work supporting their
communities during the Covid-19 crisis.
Including organising a free curry delivery
to emergency workers, litter picking/
grass cutting and collecting/ delivering
donations.

Dial-a-Ride

Offering their services for food deliveries
and taking vulnerable or elderly residents
to health appointments.

21

22

The Ivers Community
Kindness Outreach

Page 75

Volunteers and residents pulling together
and delivering 100’s of weekly Kindness
Kits to vulnerable locals.

Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

24

Aylesbury Grammar
School pupils

Setting up a food bank collection/
donation service. Created a website with
a simple online form to collect items from
doorsteps and deliver to a local food bank.

25

Aston Clinton Covid-19
Support Group

Local volunteers supporting their
community and making sure everyone
has what they need to stay safe and well.

26

Shaun Marshall and
3D Print World

Producing over 300 protective visors in
his spare time with the kind support of
3D Print World.

27

Chesham & Amersham
Sewing for Carers

Creating headbands to make
wearing masks and visors much more
comfortable and brightening up the
place for care staff.

28

Gerrards Cross Support
Group

Helping people in the community
with food, loo rolls & groceries as
well as leafleting half GX to see if
people need help.
5

29

Charlie Clare and
Paul Fealey

Working hard to ensure local schools
in the north of the county benefit from
the Community Fund ready for the
new term.

30

Buckingham Young
Carers

Providing children’s activity packs to the
most vulnerable children in homes with
adults who need care.

31

32

For becoming the new paper round
person for many of the Old Town
residents during lockdown.

33

Worked closely with our GPs
and Primary Care Networks,
Buckinghamshire Healthcare Trust,
Oxford Health, Buckinghamshire
Clinical Commissioning Group and
Buckinghamshire Council to help to
set up a range of COVID-19 vaccination
centres across Buckinghamshire.
We now have 20 vaccination centres
across the County.
Page 76
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

BuDs

After receiving a @HeartofBucks
coronavirus UK grant they launched a
professional new BuDDies befriending
service for disabled people and carers.

34
Buckinghamshire Fire
& Rescue Service

Rev. Doug Zimmerman

Schools in Bucks

Sir William Borlase, Holmer Green
Senior, Akeley Wood, The Beaconsfield
and Sir Henry Floyd Grammar schools
for donating or using their 3D printers/
laser cutters to make headbands and
visors for health and social care staff.

35

Downley Covid-19 Group

Getting Street Reps on all roads in
the Parish, setting up a home delivery
service from local shops and running a
pharmacy collection/ delivery scheme.

36

Berryfields Parish
Council

Helping vulnerable people in their
local area to stay safe and well.

37

Covid-19 Support Group
High Wycombe

Creating a community group to assist
people self-isolating and help them
gain access to support.

38

Local MP, our councillors
and volunteers

Greg Smith, Rob Butler, Angela
Macpherson, Ashley Waite & Paul Irwin
plus all the volunteers, supporting Bernie
the Bus on his trips collecting donations
for Aylesbury Vineyard foodbank.

39

The Buckingham
Food Bank

Supported by Buckingham Athletic
Club and the Rotary Club of
Buckingham - local volunteers
collecting and delivering donations.
6

Page 77
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

7

40

Old Town Street
Association

A group of 12 volunteers are shopping for
anyone at risk who does not have support
from family, friends, or carers. Running
their operations from a vintage caravan,
parked in the Rectory, they are taking care
of 30 households, they have completed 49
shopping lists in less than two weeks.

41

Chesham Citizen
Advice Bureau

For supporting local residents and
continuing to provide help and advice
by telephone about food, benefits and
local support.

42

Katie Galvin from
Buckinghamshire Council

Page 78

Katie was made aware of some toys and
toiletries leftover from the Christmas
toy appeal. Each Community Hub was
allocated a bag, Katie arranged for hers
to go to the Restore Hope Latimer Storehouse in Chesham, to be delivered to
families in need over the Easter holidays.

Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

43

Hyundai

Hyundai offered the use of a fleet of brand
new, fully insured cars for members of the
BORG 4x4 volunteers group.

44

Chartridge Parish Council

Set up a Covid-19 support group to help
vulnerable people in the village.

45

Raj Khan, Niknam Hussain
and Waheed Raja

Delivering 100 individual portions of
Chicken Biryani to Stoke Manderville
hospital, NHS staff said that “It was
all very tasty, gratefully received and
enjoyed”.

46

Shires Scrubs

In just 4 weeks they have made and
delivered to various hospitals: 170 sets
of scrubs, 5,035 headbands and 16,035
scrub wash bags.

47

CSP Community

A volunteer group in Chalfont St Peter
which helps support the local residents
and businesses during a difficult time.

48

The White Hart

in Preston Bissett has produced hundreds
of food boxes for local residents.

49

Buckingham Support
Network

The Facebook group was started by a
resident and is dealing with all sorts of
adhoc calls for shopping, medications
and advice.

50

“Stay at Home” Food &
Supplies directory

Warren Whyte has created the
“Stay at Home Food & Supplies
Directory” to help promote businesses
in and around Buckingham that have
adapted their business to offer special
takeaway services, delivery options and
even mail order.
8

51

Royal Mail

Mr Kashifr, a manager at Royal Mail
realised hand sanitiser was in very
short supply. So he took the hand rub
formula from the WHO website and
made 6000ml of it to give out to the
local community. He’s intends to make a
further 6000ml as soon as he gets more
100ml bottles.

52

Aylesbury & Winslow
Markets

Winslow and Aylesbury Markets are
trialling a ‘click & collect’ service in
Winslow to help local villages buy and
receive fresh fruit & veg, meat, fish and
some canned goods without needing to
visit a local supermarket.

53

Chris Adams

has been doing maintenance in his
local area while there are reduced
services such as litter picking,
strimming and grass cutting.
Page 79
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

54

For the Love of Scrubs

25+ seamstresses in Holmer Green
are making Making new scrubs and
recycling old duvet covers into wash
bags for local hospitals.

55

Winslow Big Society

Winslow’s Big Society Telephone
Contact Service, has become a lifeline
for Winslow’s vulnerable residents. Sue
Keane matched over 100 people, to a
regular caller to support them at home
whether it was to do their shopping, dog
walking or running errands. Each person
who needs it is matched to a shopper is
guaranteed a weekly shop.

56

Sharon Coutanche and
George Stokes

Co-wrote a song titled ‘Rainbows’
which was recorded on the 14th
April 2020. A song of hope during
these hard and uncertain times. The
song has raised over £9000 for NHS
Charities Together.

57

Jim McKellar, Orchard
View Farm

When Jim heard about a local man who
was a priority food customer, couldn’t
get hold of basics. Jim decided he
wanted to help these people and in turn
support local food producers who were
facing a tough time. Within 36 hours
he had adapted his website to process
payments and sorted out a delivery
service from his shop to the community.

58

The Ludgershall Friends
support group

has been helping with shopping,
prescriptions, organising bulk deliveries
of meat, fruit/vegetables, gardening
supplies, dog walking and telephone/
social media chatting. Every resident
who is over 70 years, or vulnerable, has
been allocated a shopping buddy so
that there is a named person they can
go to for help with basic provisions and
errands. To address some aspects of
low morale, loneliness and depression in
the elderly, the ‘Friends’ were successful
in applying for a £2,000 community grant
to supply a weekly roast dinner.
9

59

One Can Trust

A huge Thank You to #onecanstreet hero
Adam who collected foodbank donations
with his sister Ayaat in High Wycombe.

60

The people of Denham

Thank you so very much for all your
donations for DENHAM FOOD BANK

61

High Wycombe’s
Coronavirus Mutual
Aid group

300+ volunteers signed up to High
Wycombe’s Coronavirus Mutual Aid
group. Volunteers have been delivering
shopping, fetching prescriptions and
reaching out with friendly phone calls.
It’s been great to see so many people
from all walks of life working together
through social media and looking out for
each other!

Page 80
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

62

Fulmer Parish Council

A walking group which carries out litter
picking at the same time has been
organised. All necessary tools are
provided also to support the local farm
shop, plants were bought by the Parish
Council and planted in the village.

63

Feed Bucks

Feed Bucks - Gerrads Cross is local
not-for-profit food delivery service that
works with local restaurants to keep their
kitchens open and provide contact-free
food delivery to residents.

64

The Pointer Butchers,
Bernwode Lunch Club,
Brill School Meals and
Brill Memorial Hall

Fifty ready meals delivered to
vulnerable residents in Brill.

67

WISE Charity

WISE charity was nominated for the
Covid 19 - Councillor Crisis Fund.
We are receiving more and more
requests for free food parcels as people
have started running out of savings and
have difficulty buying even essential
food items.

Nissan Group

The Nissan group provided 100 face
shields for use at Olympic Lodge,
Stoke Manderville.

65

66

Haddenham Parish
Council

68

Heart of Bucks

Heart of Bucks has awarded The
Fremantle Trust a grant of £4,940 to
purchase 41 tablets, enabling residents
to stay in touch with their loved ones.

Haddenham Parish Council volunteers
are helping to sew scrubs for the NHS.

10

Page 81
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

11

69

Austin and Jenson

Five year old twins, Austin and Jenson
(with the help of mum and dad) have
been putting together face visors for the
NHS and other frontline workers.

70

Bucks WI

Have made and delivered nearly 1000
scrub bags for hospitals and surgeries.

71

Media Ace - Thame

Have donated face shields to Aylesbury
Vale Police response officers. Ensuring
they are able to go about their daily duties
safely and effectively.

72

Marie Biswell

Page 82

A British Sign Language interpreter, is
posting signed stories on her youtube
channel, ensuring they are accessible
for all.

Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

73

Medical Detection Dogs

Six super noses could soon be trained
to detect if someone has COVID-19 and
play a vital role in preventing further
spread of the pandemic in future.
The charity Medical Detection Dogs
will intensively train six dogs to help
provide a rapid, non-invasive diagnosis
for the virus. Working closely with
the government, and in partnership
with the London School of Hygiene
and Tropical Medicine (LSHTM) and
Durham University. A crowdfunder has
been launched to start raising funds for
preliminary stage of research.

74

Dean Jones at
Buckingham University

40 PPE Face Shields to Hamilton
House Care Home in Buckingham.

75

Chesham Muslim
Community Foundation

76

Better Connected
Beaconsfield

BCB sprang into action recruiting 350+
volunteers known as ‘Buddies’ to help
with shopping: collecting prescriptions,
running errands and making checkin phone calls to the most vulnerable
residents. Recognising that not
everyone is online, BCB published
and distributed a one-off ‘Community
Together’ magazine to 15,000 residents
in and around Beaconsfield. The
excellent work done by BCB has not
gone unnoticed, BCB received £2k from
the Cllr crisis fund to help them support
vulnerable people locally.

77

Apetito - Meals on
Wheels

Apetito drivers have been going out
to deliver meals on a daily basis at
this crucial time ensuring that those
that need it are getting a hot and
healthy meal daily.

Donated a Sainsbury’s gift card to a
family in need, so they could purchase
fresh fruit and vegetables.

12

78

Kelvin Wong Watermead Inn and Miya
restaurant in Aylesbury

Immediately after lockdown was
announced he used the remaining food
he had in the restaurant to make meals
for vulnerable residents and frontline
workers, his team of volunteers were
dropping them off outside peoples’
homes. Kelvin is also a huge part of the
volunteer group that collect food items
from residents who can donate and then
make up food boxes for vulnerable or
desperate residents and families to help
them if they run out.

79

The Oasis Partnership

Outreach workers for drug and
alcohol harm reduction, have been
going to supermarkets to help to feed
homelessness people in temporary
accommodation.

Page 83
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

80

The Chesham
Support Hub

The Chesham Support Hub (TCSH)
supports nearly 200 shielded residents
with food parcels, help with getting
medicines and getting to medical
appointments and a multitude of other
erands, for example, requesting financial
support so that a resident could attend
multiple Chemotherapy treatments at
hospital. A black taxi cab provided the
best local transport option as the screen
in the cab observed the social distancing
rules for all parties.

81

Wooburn / Bourne End
SOS and Wye Valley
Volunteers

Heard from an elderly lady who was
unable to fix her broken glasses, which
she needs to see properly. Through
their network of volunteers they found
someone locally who had a glasses
repair kit who’s relative was an optician.
Within half an hour of the call, the
volunteer arrived and was able to safely
mend the glasses.

82

Five Pillars High
Wycombe and One YMCA

Volunteers at Five Pillars High Wycombe
have been supporting the community in
more ways than one with their endless
acts of kindness and generosity. From
supporting local residents and vulnerable
people by sourcing fresh fruit, vegetables,
bread and other produce for ONE YMCA,
to Arif Hussain and his family raising
funds to bulk purchase food essentials
and delivering them to local elderly people
in need (with thanks to Aldi London Road,
High Wycombe and WISE group).

83

Seer Green singing group

The community of Seer Green in South
Bucks has been getting together via
Zoom every Saturday morning to sing.
This song was written by two members
of that community, Jane Smith and Fliss
Coombs. Over 70 people of all ages,
including some very young children, took
part in the video recording and have been
singing the song every week to lift their
spirits.

13

84

Iver South Bucks

The Ivers Parish Council set up a
Community Food parcel scheme which
collects donations of non-perishable
foods and delivers to nearly 200 people a
week. The recipients of the food parcels
are not the only ones to feel the benefit.
“I felt powerless to help in the fight
against the virus, I wanted to do
something to help my community and
all the people who need to self-isolate.
The Parish Council initiative has given
me the opportunity to help and be part
of a team of like-minded people who pull
together to ensure the most vulnerable
are supported and have access to food
and basic necessities. It’s about helping
people, everybody has needed a hand
at some time so it is satisfying when you
can give back. I find it very rewarding.
I’d tell anybody to volunteer if they can.”
“It is a good feeling and makes you
realise that not only are you blessed but
that community spirit is still very much
part of village life.”
Page 84
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

85

NHS as an administrator
in the Mental Health
Team based at Wexham
Park Hospital.

Karen Woods is a learner in one of
Buckinghamshire Adult Learning’s
dressmaking classes. When not
dressmaking, she works for the NHS as
an administrator for the Mental Health
Team based at Wexham Park Hospital.
As the Covid19 emergency worsened
Karen saw that her team were in dire
need of PPE. So, armed with her newly
acquired dressmaking skills Karen
offered to make some much needed
scrubs. Karen set up the Scrub Hub,
mobilising a team of six dressmakers
including fellow learners and her tutor.
To date 70 sets of scrubs have been
made and gratefully received by the
NHS and so long the fabric keeps
coming they have no plans to stop.

86

Chiltern Rangers

The Chiltern Rangers, were given
funding through the Wexham &
Ivers Local Area Forum to deliver a
conservation project for schools in
Iver. With the aim to improve the local
environment and also to educate and
help young people learn conservation
skills. This project was on hold due
to Covid-19 but is now starting to get
back up and running at Iver Village
Infant school, with the activities
amended to adhere to social distancing
guidelines etc.

87

High Wycombe Food
Response group

The Food Response Group in High
Wycombe is made up of a number of
partner organisations, led by Hannah
Fenton from Sustain and funded by
The Rothschild Foundation.
It’s purpose is to improve the food
system and ensure that the provision
of fresh food is accessible to all.

14

88

The Sticky Bun Run

Downley’s Sticky Bun Run was featured
on Ross Kemp’s new TV show - Britains
Volunteer Army on BBC1.
The Sticky Bun Run is a joint initiative
by the Disraeli – Coronavirus
Community Support Group and
Pastures Church Foodbank. Volunteers
go out every night to collect residual
food and Sticky Buns from local
supermarkets. The Food is then
distributed to those in need across
High Wycombe.

89

Buckingham Primary
school

Buckingham Primary School created a
video to cheer up their pupils and school
community using ‘Take That’s - Let It
Shine’ and posted it on facebook. The
were delighted when Take That’s very
own Gary Barlow responded via video to
say he thought it was great!

Page 85
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

90

Chesham Help for
Coronavirus group

Chesham Help for Coronavirus group
organised the local community to
celebrate the 75th Wedding Anniversary
of a Chesham couple – which took
place on the 18th May. There was a
fabulous cake and hundreds of cards
and included a concert from a 14 piece
orchestra and opera singer, all from a
safe distance!
Age UK take the lady to medical
appointments, a volunteer learnt of the
celebration and asked Chesham Help
For Coronavirus to ramp up a surprise.
The happy couple were interviewed on
Three Counties radio.

91

Wendover Youth Centre

Wendover Youth Centre have been
running a pen pal scheme where young
people and elderly people have been
writing letters to each other during this
time where people are feeling isolated,
bored, cut-off and lonely.

92

Hilltop Villages
Volunteers

Hilltop Villages Volunteers surprise one
resident with a 90th birthday celebration.
Volunteers learnt one of their resident’s
Geoff was due to turn 90 on the 16th
May, so they secretly organised a
surprise birthday party. Friends and
neighbours to ‘gathered’ to sing Happy
Birthday, he was presented with a handpainted birthday card, a cake and an
Acer tree to plant in his well-kept garden.
Geoff was taken completely by surprise
and was clearly very touched by all the
fuss being made of him.

93

Seed 1

Seed 1 is Marlow’s first zero-waste
shop and also a registered Community
Interest Company with all profits going
towards providing accommodation
and support for the homeless in Bucks.
Seed 1 posted a BIG THANK YOU
on social media to Buckinghamshire
Council for supporting 93 families
facing homelessness during the current
Covid-19 crisis.

15

94

Good Neighbours
Scheme

Sue Lynch from the Good Neighbours
Scheme has been shortlisted to the last
four of the Daily Telegraph Lockdown
Awards.
Sue Lynch chairs the local Good
Neighbours scheme in Stoke Poges,
Buckinghamshire. Normally the group,
which has around 20 volunteers
covering the village, provides lifts to
hospital appointments, helps with DIY,
gardening or simply offers a friendly
chat.
The lockdown meant an even greater
effort was required, existing volunteers
were over 70, so new recruits were
needed. Lynch recruited 60 new
volunteers to help the elderly or those
self-isolating.
“The community spirit has very much
come to the fore,” Lynch explains.
“People are pulling together, looking out
for their neighbours. I was very moved
to be nominated for this award, but I
would say it’s the volunteers doing a
great job; everyone is doing their bit.”

95

YC2 Buckingham &
Winslow Young Carers

From the outset of Lockdown Young
Carers 2 (YC2) implemented a ‘Contact
& Support Plan’ for children and young
people in Buckinghamshire aged 6-18
years old who have a caring role.
With the usual number of YC2 volunteers
greatly reduced YC2 still manage to
contact each family/YC every week,
finding out if they have any needs,
offering a friendly impartial ear, helping
with practical needs, new clothing,
benefit advice, medication supplies,
whilst keeping our volunteers safe.

96

Buckinghamshire Council
Registrars

who have continued to work and process
deaths providing much support to
bereaved people during the lockdown.

97

Savay Close - VE Day
Celebrations and
Isolation Bingo

Savay Close’s community spirit not just
surviving but thriving !!
Every Wednesday and Saturday
residents of Savay Close in Denham
stand on their doorstep or sit by an open
window to join in with a game of isolation
bingo or take part in a quiz. The cost
of taking part is a donation to the local
foodbank.
Savay Close went to town with it’s VE
Day celebrations, they decorated the
street, had a BBQ and a DJ play music
from 11am-10pm, fantastic, sociallydistanced fun.

98

Aylesbury Vineyard

Working in partnership with Council
teams, Bernwode Bus and Street
Association providing groceries to
people in need throughout lockdown.

Page 86
Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

16

99

Global Infusion Group
(GIG)

are experts in delivering global catering
and were booked to provide catering
for high-profile events worldwide
throughout 2020 including the
Olympics in Japan, the UK Pavilion at
Expo 2020 in Dubai and Glastonbury.
However, the global events industry
was one of the first industries to
be impacted by COVID-19 and GIG
effectively lost £9.4 million of business
in three days due to cancelled events.
The Global Infusion Group sprang
into action to pivot their activity into
supporting the NHS and are now
catering for 15 NHS sites across
Buckinghamshire, providing over 1,000
meals per day.

100

All Saints Church in
High Wycombe

Page 87

For helping their community through
virtual coffee mornings and virtual
services. The congregation has also
delivered free ready meals to residents
and made masks and scrub bags.

Buckinghamshire Council Covid-19 Report - Appendix A

101

Hello Prestwood

The Hello Prestwood Volunteer Group,
are very proud of the difference they are
making within their local community.
With an amazing network of approx.
150 volunteers, who have completed
more than 1,000 shopping trips and
prescription collections and made over
200 phone calls, dog walks, hospital
trips etc.
Equally important, the volunteers offer
vulnerable and isolated residents human
interaction and engagement, the
volunteer maybe the only person they
see that day or even that week.

102

Unbound theatre group

Unbound theatre group, who are based
@queensparkarts centre, have not let
the lockdown slow them down.
Check out the great work they’ve been
doing over the last few months.

103

McAuley’s Pizzas
for Carers

Every #Clapforcarers Thursday evening,
the McAuley family have been firing up
their own Pizza oven, making delicious
wood fired pizzas to raise funds for carers.
Offering a variety of tasty toppings on the
Pizzas with no fixed prices just asking for
a donation to The Care Workers Charity.
Their initial fundraising target was £500
they have reached over £760!

104

Our Library Staff

We applaud our council library staff
for adapting and changing roles to
help people in need: arranging food
deliveries, helping organise medicines
and simply being there for a chat on the
end of a phone when people feel alone.
“Thank you and your team for looking
after us so well, we do not feel alone
with you alongside us”

17

For more #ProudofBucks stories have a look at our
new blog at medium.com/proud-of-bucks

Page 88

